
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

DISTRICT OP CONNECTICUT 

Grand J u r y  H-85-1 

: CRIMINAL NO. //'Sea UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

v. : VIOLATION: 

VICTOR MANUEL GERENA, 
a / k / a  w A g u l l a , w  

18 U.S.C. •˜ 2113(d)  
(Bank Robbery)  ; 
18 U.S.C. •˜ 659 
( T h e f t  f rom I n t e r s t a t e  
S h i p m e n t ) ;  
18 U.S.C •˜ 1 9 5 1  
( O b s t r u c t i o n  of  Commerce 

FILIBERTO INOCENCIO OJEDA-RIOS, 
a / k / a  "Greco, a / k / a  u L u l s ,  
a / k / a  " J u v e n a l  C o n ~ e p c l o n , ~  
a / k / a  "Pedro  Almodovar, 
a / k / a  w J u l l o  Lopez," 
a / k / a  "El V l e J o ,  

by Robbery; C o n s p i r a c y ) ;  
18 U.S.C. •˜ 2314 
( I n t e r s t a t e  T r a n s p o r t a -  
t i o n  o f  S t o l e n  P r o p e r t y )  J U A N  ENRIQUE SEGARRA 111-PALMER, 

a / k / a  " J o s e  Perez-Moreno," 
a / k / a  "Ronald P r l n c l o t t a , "  
a / k / a  "Papa," a / k / a  v J u n l o r , v  

AVELINO GONZAI?EZ-CLAUDIO, 
a / k / a  nTlno ,  

HILTON EDGARDO PERNANDEZ-DIAMANTE, 
a / k / a  "Romano, 

JO9GE AURELIO FARINACCI- G A R C I A ,  
a / k / a  "Rober to ,  " 

NORBERT0 GONZALEZ-CLAUDIO, 
a / k / a  "Johnny, 

ELIAS SAMUEL CASTRO-RAMOS, 
a / k / a  "Mar t in , "  



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

DISTRICT OF CONNECTICUT 

Grand Jury H-85-1 

ORLANDO GONZALEZ-CLAUDIO, 
a/k/a "Jumbo, 

IVONNE MELENDEZ-CARRION, 
a/k/a Y?alcon, " 

ANGEL DIAZ-RUIZ, a/k/a "Milos" 

ISAAC CAMACHO-NEGRON, 
a/k/a "Frank, " 

LUIS ALFRED0 COLON-OSORIO, 
a/k/a llManuel, " 
a/k/a lkAndres Leon-Pagan, 

NORMAN RAMIREZ-TALAVERA, 
a/k/a "Pedro, " 

CARLOS Ma AYES-SUAREZ, 
a/k/a "PepeSw a/k/a nPio,w 

LUZ MARIA BERRIOS-BERRIOS, 
a/k/a uMima,~ a/k/a "Lucy SegarraSn 

ANNE La GASSIN, a/k/a "Teresan 



I N D I C T M E N T  

The Grand J u r y  Charges t h a t :  

COUNT ONE 

On o r  a b o u t  September  1 2 ,  1983,  i n  t h e  D i s t r i c t  of 

C o n n e c t i c u t ,  VICTOR MANUEL GERENA, a / k / a  w A g u i l a , w  PILIBERTO 

INOCENCIO OJEDA-RIOS, a / k / a  "Greco," a / k / a  I tLuis ,"  a / k / a  

" J u v e n a l  C o n c e p ~ i o n , ~  a / k / a  ItPedro Almodovar," a / k / a  n J u l i o  

Lopez," a / k / a  " E l  V i e J o , "  and J U A N  ENRIQUE SEGARRA III- 

PALMER, a / k / a  " J o s e  Perez-Moreno," a / k / a  "Ronald P r i n ~ i o t t a , ~  

a / k / a  "Papa," a / k / a  ~ J ~ n i o r , ~  t h e  d e f e n d a n t s  h e r e i n ,  a i d e d  

and a b e t t e d  by each  o t h e r ,  by f o r c e  and v i o l e n c e  and by 

i n t i m i d a t i o n ,  w i l f u l l y  and u n l a w f u l l y  and w i t h  f e l o n i o u s  

i n t e n t ,  d i d  t a k e  f rom t h e  pe r son  and p r e s e n c e  of a n o t h e r ,  t h e  

a p p r o x i m a t e  sum of s i x  m i l l i o n  n i n e  hundred f i f t y - s i x  

thousand  f i v e  hundred twen ty  d o l l a r s  ($6,956,520.00) i n  

money, b e l o n g i n g  t o  and i n  t h e  c a r e ,  c u s t o d y ,  c o n t r o l ,  

management and  p o s s e s s i o n  of t h e  Bank of Bos ton ,  t h e n  known 

as t h e  F i r s t  N a t i o n a l  Bank of Boston,  a f e d e r a l l y  i n s u r e d  

bank,  and i n  commi t t ing  t h e  a f o r e s a i d  o f f e n s e ,  d i d  a s s a u l t  

one James McKeon and one Timothy G i r a r d  by u s e  of a dangerous  
# 



weapon, t h a t  i s ,  a firearm, a n d  d i d  p u t  i n  j e o p a r d y  t h e  l i v e s  

o f  James McKeon a n d  Timothy  G i r a r d  by u s e  o f  a d a n g e r o u s  

weapon, t h a t  is, a firearm, 

I n  v i o l a t i o n  o f  T i t l e  18, U n i t e d  S t a t e s  Code, S e c t i o n s  

2 1 1 3 ( d )  a n d  2 ,  

COUNT TWO 

On o r  a b o u t  Sep tember  1 2 ,  1983 ,  i n  t h e  D i s t r i c t  o f  

C o n n e c t i c u t ,  VICTOR MANUEL GERENA, a / k / a  w A g u i l a , n  FILIBERTO 

INOCENCIO OJEDA-RIOS, a / k / a  "Greco,"  a / k / a  w L u i s , w  a / k / a  

" J u v e n a l  C o n c e p c i o n B W  a / k / a  "Pedro  AlmodovarBW a / k / a  t l J u l i o  

Lopez ,"  a / k / a  ''El V i e j o B W  a n d  J U A N  ENRIQUE SEGARRA III- 

PALMER, a / k / a  " J o s e  Perez-Moreno,"  a / k / a  " R o n a l d  P r i n ~ i o t t a , ~ ~  

a / k / a  "Papa," a / k / a  " J u n i o r ,  t h e  d e f e n d a n t s  h e r e i n ,  a i d e d  

a n d  a b e t t e d  by e a c h  o t h e r ,  by f o r c e  and  v i o l e n c e  and  by 

i n t i m i d a t i o n ,  w i l f u l l y  and  u n l a w f u l l y  and  w i t h  f e l o n i o u s  

i n t e n t ,  d i d  t a k e  f r o m  t h e  p e r s o n  and  p r e s e n c e  of  * o t h e r ,  t h e  

a p p r o x l m a t e  sum o f  t h r e e  h u n d r e d  f i v e  t h o u s a n d  d o l l a r s  

($305 ,000 .00 )  i n  money, b e l o n g i n g  t o  and i n  t h e  c a r e ,  

c u s t o d y ,  c o n t r o l ,  management and  p o s s e s s i o n  of  t h e  

C o n n e c t i c u t  N a t i o n a l  Bank, a f e d e r a l l y  i n s u r e d  bank ,  and  i n  

c o m m i t t i n g  t h e  a f o r e s a i d  o f f e n s e ,  d i d  a s s a u l t  o n e  James 

McKeon and  one  T imothy  G i r a r d  by u s e  of  a d a n g e r o u s  weapon, 

t h a t  i s ,  a firearm, and  d i d  p u t  i n  J e o p a r d y  t h e  l i v e s  o f  

James McKeon and  T imothy  G i r a r d  by u s e  of a d a n g e r o u s  weapon, 

t h a t  i s ,  a firearm. 



I n  v i o l a t i o n  of  T i t l e  1 8 ,  Uni ted  S t a t e s  Code, S e c t i o n s  

2113(d)  and  2. 

COUNT THREE 

On o r  a b o u t  September 12', 1983,  i n  t h e  D i s t r i c t  o f  

C o n n e c t i c u t ,  VICTOR MANUEL GERENA, a / k / a  ~ A ~ u ~ ~ ~ , ~ F I L I B E R T O  

I N O C E N C I O  OJEDA-RIOS, a / k / a  "Greco," a / k / a  " L u i ~ , ~  a / k / a  

" J u v e n a l  C o n ~ e p c i o n , ~  a / k / a  "Pedro Almodovar," a / k / a  V u l i o  

Lopez," a / k / a  " E l  V i e j o , "  and J U A N  ENRIQUE SEGARRA III- 

PALMER, a / k / a  "Jose Perez-Moreno," a / k / a  "Ronald P r i n ~ i o t t a , ~  

a / k / a  nPapo ,n  a / k / a  w J u n i o r , w  t h e  d e f e n d a n t s  h e r e i n ,  a i d e d  

and a b e t t e d  by each  o t h e r ,  by f o r c e  and v i o l e n c e  and by 

i n t i m i d a t i o n ,  w i l f u l l y  and u n l a w f u l l y  and w i t h  f e l o n i o u s  

i n t e n t ,  d i d  t a k e  from t h e  p e r s o n  and p r e s e n c e  of  a n o t h e r ,  t h e  

a p p r o x i m a t e  sum of  s e v e n t e e n  thousand  d o l l a r s  ($17,000.00) i n  

money, b e l o n g i n g  t o  and i n  t h e  c a r e ,  c u s t o d y ,  c o n t r o l ,  

management and p o s s e s s i o n  of t h e  New England Sav ings  Bank, a 

f e d e r a l l y  i n s u r e d  bank, and i n  commit t ing  t h e  a f o r e s a i d  

o f f e n s e ,  d i d  a s s a u l t  one  James McKeon and one Timothy G i r a r d  

by u s e  of a  dangerous  weapon, t h a t  is ,  a f i r e a r m ,  and d i d  p u t  

i n  J e o p a r d y  t h e  l i v e s  o f  James McKeon and Timothy G i r a r d  by 

u s e  of a dangerous  weapon, t h a t  i s ,  a f i r e a r m .  

I n  v i o l a t i o n  of T i t l e  1 8 ,  Uni ted  S t a t e s  Code, S e c t i o n s  

2 1 1 3 ( d )  and  2. 

COUNT FOUR 

On o r  a b o u t  September  1 2 ,  1983,  i n  t h e  D i s t r i c t  of 
# 



C o n n e c t i c u t ,  VICTOR MANUEL GERENA, a / k / a  l tAgu i l a , "  PILIBERTO 

INOCENCIO OJEDA-RIOS, a / k / a  "Greco ,"  a / k / a  " L u i s , "  a / k / a  

" J u v e n a l  C o n c e p ~ i o n , ~  a / k / a  "Pedro  Almodovar," a / k / a  " J u l i o  

Lopez,lt a / k / a  "El  V i e j ~ , ~  a n d  J U A N  ENRIQUE SEGARRA III- 

PALMER, a / k / a  " J o s e  Perez-Moreno,"  a / k / a  "Ronald P r i n c i o t t a , "  

a / k / a  "Papa," a / k / a  V ~ n i o r , ~  t h e  d e f e n d a n t s  h e r e i n ,  a i d e d  

a n d  a b e t t e d  by e a c h  o t h e r ,  by f o r c e  and  v i o l e n c e  and by 

i n t i m i d a t i o n ,  w i l f u l l y  and  u n l a w f u l l y  and  w i t h  f e l o n i o u s  

i n t e n t ,  d i d  t a k e  f rom t h e  p e r s o n  and  p r e s e n c e  o f  a n o t h e r ,  t h e  

a p p r o x i m a t e  sum of n i n e t y - f i v e  t h o u s a n d  f i v e  h u n d r e d  t w e n t y  

d o l l a r s  ($95 ,520 .00 )  I n  money, b e l o n g i n g  t o  and  i n  t h e  c a r e ,  

c u s t o d y ,  c o n t r o l ,  management and p o s s e s s i o n  o f  t h e  

C o n n e 2 t i c u t  Bank and  T r u s t ,  a f e d e r a l l y  i n s u r e d  bank ,  and  i n  

c o m m i t t i n g  t h e  a f o r e s a i d  o f f e n s e ,  d i d  a s s a u l t  one  James 

McKeon and  one  Timothy  G i r a r d  by u s e  o f  a d a n g e r o u s  weapon, 

t h a t  i s ,  a f i r e a r m ,  and  d i d  p u t  i n  j e o p a r d y  t h e  l i v e s  o f  

James McKeon and  Timothy  G i r a r d  by u s e  o f  a d a n g e r o u s  weapon, 

t h a t  i s ,  a f i r e a r m .  

I n  v i o l a t i o n  o f  T i t l e  1 8 ,  U n i t e d  S t a t e s  Code, S e c t i o n s  

2 1 1 3 ( d )  a n d  2. 

COUNT FIVE 

On o r  a b o u t  Sep tember  1 2 ,  1 9 8 3 ,  i n  t h e  D i s t r i c t  o f  

C o n n e c t i c u t ,  VICTOR MANUEL GERENA, a / k / a  l l A g u i l a , l l  FILIBERTO 

INOCENCIO OJEDA-RIOS, a /k /q  l lGreco,"  a / k / a  " L u i s , 1 t  a / k / a  

l t Juvena l  C o n ~ e p c i o n , ~ ~  a / k / a  "Pedro  Almodovar,I1 a / k / a  " J u l i o  



Lopez,!! a / k / a  " E l  V i e j o , "  J U A N  ENRIQUE SEGARRA 111-PALMER, 

a / k / a  " J o s e  Perez-Moreno,!! a / k / a  !!Ronald P r i n ~ i o t t a , ~  a / k / a  

"Papa," a / k / a  w J u n i o r , w  t h e  d e f e n d a n t s  h e r e i n ,  a i d e d  and 

a b e t t e d  by e a c h  o t h e r ,  w i l f u I l y  and knowingly ,  and w i t h  

i n t e n t  t o  c o n v e r t  t o  t h e i r  own u s e ,  d i d  embezzle,  s t e a l ,  t a k e  

and c a r r y  away from t h e  Wel l s  F a r g o  d e p o t ,  a t  West H a r t f o r d ,  

C o n n e c t i c u t ,  F e d e r a l  R e s e r v e  Notes  of  a v a l u e  of f o u r  m i l l i o n  

n i n e  hundred  s e v e n t y  thousand  d o l l a r s  ($4 ,970,000.00) ,  which 

were  moving a s ,  were p a r t  of  and c o n s t i t u t e d  a n  i n t e r s t a t e  

sh ipment  o f  f r e i g h t ,  e x p r e s s  and o t h e r  p r o p e r t y  from 

S p r i n g f i e l d ,  M a s s a c h u s e t t s ,  t o  B r i d g e p o r t ,  C o n n e c t i c u t .  

I n  v i o l a t i o n  o f  T i t l e  1 8 ,  U n i t e d  S t a t e s  Code, S e c t i o n  

659 and  2.  

COUNT SIX 

1. A t  a l l  t i m e s  p e r t i n e n t  h e r e t o ,  t h e  d e f e n d a n t s  

VICTOR MANUEL GERENA, a / k / a  " A g u l l a , "  FILIBERTO I N O C E N C I O  

OJEDA-RIOS, a / k / a  "Greco,"  a / k / a  !!Luis,n a / k / a  " J u v e n a l  

Conception," a / k / a  "Pedro  A l m o d o ~ a r , ! ~  a / k / a  " J u l i o  Lopez,"  

a / k / a  " E l  V ie  j o , "  J U A N  ENRIQUE SEGARRA 111-PALMER, a / k / a  

" J o s e  Perez-Moreno," a / k / a  "Ronald P r l n c l o t t a , "  a / k / a  I'Papo," 

a / k / a  ! ! J u n i o r , N  AVELINO G O N Z A L E Z - C L A U D I O ,  a / k / a  !!Tino," 

HILTON EDGARDO FERNANDEZ-DIAMANTE, a / k / a  "Rornan~,~!  J O R G E  

AURELIO FARINACCI-GARCIA, a / k / a  " R o b e r t o , "  NORBERT0 GONZALEZ- 

CLAUDIO, a / k / a  "Johnny,"  ELIAS SAMUEL CASTRO-RAMOS, a / k / a  

"Martin,!!  ORLANDO GONZALSZ-CLAUDIO, a / k / a  vJumbo,!! IVONNE 
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MELENDEZ-CARRION, a/k/a "Falcon," ANGEL DIAZ-RUIZ, a/k/a 

%ilo, tg ISAAC CAMACHO-NEGRON, a/k/a "Prank, LUIS ALPREDO 

COLON-OSORIO, a/k/a "Manuel," a/k/a I' Andres Leon-Pagan , 
NORMAN,RAMIREZ-TALAVERA, a/k/a "Pedro," CARLOS M. AYES- 

SUAREZ, a/k/a "Pepe," a/k/a nPio," LUZ MARIA BERRIOS-BERRIOS, 

a/k/a nMima,l' a/k/a "Lucy Segarra," were members of the 

"Macheteros," a clandestine organization whose goals are the 

attainment of independence for Puerto Rico by the use of 

force and the establishment of a Socialist-Communist form of 

government in Puerto Rico. 

2. From on or about March 19, 1983 and continuously 

thereafter until the date of this indictment, in the District 

of Connecticut and elsewhere, VICTOR MANUEL GERENA, a/k/a 

uAguila,u FILIBERTO INOCENCIO OJEDA-RIOS, a/k/a llGreco,u 

a/k/a ttLuls,n a/k/a "Juvenal Con~epcion,~ a/k/a "Pedro 

Alm~dovar,~' a/k/a 'fJulio Lopez," a/k/a "El Viej~,~: JUAN 

ENRIQUE SEGARRA 111-PALMER, a/k/a '?Jose Perez-Moreno," a/k/a 

"Ronald Prin~iotta,~ a/k/a 'Papo, " a/k/a "unior, AVELINO 

GONZALEZ-CLAUDIO, a/k/a "Tino," HILTON EDGARDO FERNANDEZ- 

DIAMANTE, a/k/a "Romano," JORGE AURELIO FARINACCI-GARCIA, 

a/k/a "Roberto,lf NORBERT0 GONZALEZ-CLAUDIO, a/k/a "Johnny," 

ELIAS SAMUEL CASTRO-RAMOS, a/k/a "Martin," ORLANDO GONZALEZ- 

CLAUDIO, a/k/a llJumbo,n IVONNE MELENDEZ-CARRION, a/k/a 

"Falcon," ANGEL DIAZ-RUIZ, a/k/a ISAAC CAMACHO- 

NEGRON, a/k/a "Frank," LUIS ALFRED0 COLON-OSORIO, a/k/a 
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??#anuel  , a / k / a  "Andres  Leon-Pagan, NORMAN RAMIREZ-TALAVERA, 

a / k / a  "Pedro , "  CARLOS M a  AYES-SUAREZ, a / k / a  " P e p e a n  a / k / a  

I P i o ,  " a n d  LUZ M A R I A  BERRIOS-BERRIOS, a / k / a  l?Mima, a / k / a  

"Lucy S e g a r r a , '  a i d e d  and  a b e t t e d  by ANNE La GASSIN, a / k / a  

t l T e r e s a , w  a n d  by e a c h  o t h e r ,  u n l a w f u l l y  and  w i l f u l l y  d i d  

o b s t r u c t ,  d e l a y ,  and  a f f e c t  commerce as t h a t  t e rm is d e f i n e d  

i n  a n d  by S e c t i o n  1 9 5 1  of T i t l e  18, U n i t e d  S t a t e s  Code, and  

t h e  movement o f  a r t i c l e s  and  commodi t ies  i n  s u c h  commerce, by 

r o b b e r y ,  as t h a t  term is  d e f i n e d  i n  and by S e c t i o n  1 9 5 1  of  

T i t l e  18,  U n i t e d  S t a t e s  Code, t h a t  i s  t o  s a y ,  by o b t a i n i n g  

F e d e r a l  R e s e r v e  No tes  i n  t h e  amount of  s e v e n  m i l l i o n  s e v e n  

t h o u s a n d  o n e  hundred  f i f t y - o n e  d o l l a r s  and n i n e t y - e i g h t  c e n t s  

($7 ,007 ,151 .98)  by r o b b e r y  f rom t h e  Wells F a r g o  d e p o t  a t  West 

H a r t f o r d ,  C o n n e c t i c u t .  

A l l  i n  v i o l a t i o n  of  T i t l e  18, U n i t e d  S t a t e s  Code, 

S e c t i o n s  1 9 5 1  a n d  2.  

COUNT SEVEN 

1. The Grand J u r y  i n c o r p o r a t e s  by r e f e r e n c e  a n d  

r e a l l e g e s  as though  f u l l y  s e t  f o r t h  h e r e i n  p a r a g r a p h  one of  

Count  S i x  of t h i s  i n d i c t m e n t .  

2. Commencing on o r  a b o u t  March 1 9 ,  1983  and 

c o n t i n u o u s l y  t h e r e a f t e r  u n t i l  t h e  d a t e  o f  t h i s  i n d i c t m e n t ,  

t h e  e x a c t  d a t e s  b e i n g  unknown t o  t h e  Grand J u r y ,  i n  t h e  

D i s t r i c t  of C o n n e c t i c u t  and e l s e w h e r e ,  VICTOR MANUEL GERENA, 

a / k / a  " A g ~ i l a , ~  FILIBERTO INOCENCIO OJEDA-RIOS, a / k / a  
# 



" P e d r o  Almodovar," a / k / a  " J u l i o  Lopez ,"  a / k / a  "E l  V i e j o , "  

J U A N  ENRIQUE SEGARRA 111-PALMER, a / k / a  " J o s e  Perez-Moreno,"  

a / k / a  "Ronald  P r i n c i o t t a , "  a / k / a  "Papa," a / k / a  w J u n i o r , "  

AVELINO GONZALEZ-CLAUDIO, a / k / a  w T i n o , n  HILTON EDGARDO 

FERNANDEZ-DIAMANTE, a / k / a    roman^,^ JORGE AURELIO PARINACCI- 

G A R C I A ,  a / k / a  w R o b e r t o , w  NORBERT0 GONZALEZ-CLAUDIO, a / k / a  

V ~ h n n y , ~  ELIAS SAMUEL CASTRO-RAMOS, a / k / a  n M a r t i n , m  ORLANDO 

GONZALEZ-CLAUDIO, a / k / a  Vumbo,"  IVONNE MELENDEZ-CARRION, 

a / k / a  " F a l c o n s n  ANGEL D I A Z - R U I Z ,  a / k / a  "Milos" ISAAC 

CAMACHO-NEGRON, a / k / a  "F rank , "  LUIS ALFRED0 COLON-OSORIO, 

a / k / a  "Manuel ,"  a / k / a  "Andres  Leon-Pagan," NORMAN RAMIREZ- 

TALAVERA, a / k / a  "Pedro , "  CARLOS M. AYES-SPAREZ, a / k / a  "Pepe,"  

a / k / a  " P i o , "  LUZ M A R I A  BERRIOS-BERRIOS, a / k / a  " M i m a S n  a / k / a  

"Lucy S e g a r r a , "  and  ANNE L. GASSIN, a / k / a  " T e r e s a " ,  t h e  

d e f e n d a n t s  a n d  c o - c o n s p i r a t o r s  h e r e i n ,  u n l a w f u l l y ~ ~ w i l f u l l y  

a n d  k n o w i n g l y  combined,  c o n s p i r e d ,  c o n f e d e r a t e d  and  a g r e e d  

t o g e t h e r  a n d  w i t h  e a c h  o t h e r ,  a n d  w i t h  d i v e r s  o t h e r  p e r s o n s  

t o  t h e  Grand  J u r y  unknown, t o  o b s t r u c t ,  d e l a y  and  a f f e c t  

commerce, as t h a t  term i s  d e f i n e d  i n  and  by S e c t i o n  1951  o f  

T i t l e  18, U n i t e d  S t a t e s  Code, by r o b b e r y ,  as t h a t  t e r m  is  

d e f i n e d  i n  a n d  by S e c t i o n  1951  o f  T i t l e  1 8 ,  U n i t e d  S t a t e s  

Code. 

3. It  was p a r t  o f  s a i d  c o n s p i r a c y  t h a t  t h e  d e f e n d a n t s ,  

VICTOR MANUEL GERENA, a / k / a  u A g u i l a , n  FILIBERTO INOCENCIO 
# 



OJEDA-RIOS, a / k / a  "Greco," a / k / a  " L u i s ,  " a / k / a  " J u v e n a l  

C o n c e p ~ i o n , ~  a / k / a  " P e d r o  A l m o d o v a r , "  a / k / a  " J u l i o  L o p e z , "  

a / k / a  n E l  V ie jo , "  J U A N  ENRIQUE SEGARRA 111-PALMER, a / k / a  

"Jose P e r e z - M o r e n ~ , ~  a / k / a ' " R o n a l d  P r i n c i o t t a , "  a / k / a  "Papa," 

a / k / a  n J u n i o r , N  AVELINO GONZALEZ-CLAUDIO, a / k / a  " T i n o , "  

HILTON EDGARDO FERNANDEZ-DIAMANTE, a / k / a    roman^,^ JORGE 

AURELIO FARINACCI-GARCIA, a / k / a  " R o b e r t o , "  NORBERT0 GONZALEZ- 

CLAUDIO, a / k / a  " J ~ h n n y , ~  d e v i s e d  a p l a n  w h e r e b y  VICTOR MANUEL 

GERENA, a / k / a  " A g u i l a , "  a g u a r d  f o r  t h e  company ,  w o u l d  r o b  

t h e  Wells F a r g o  Armored S e r v i c e  C o r p o r a t i o n ,  2 1  C u l b r o  D r i v e ,  

West H a r t f o r d ,  C o n n e c t i c u t .  I 

4. It was f u r t h e r  p a r t  of s a i d  c o n s p i r a c y  t h a t  on  

S e p t e m b e r  1 2 ,  1 9 8 3 ,  t h e  d e f e n d a n t ,  VICTOR MANUEL GERENA, 

a / k / a  " A g u i l a ,  " d i d  r o b  t h e  Wells F a r g o  Armored S e r v i c e  

C o r p o r a t i o n  o f  s e v e n  m i l l i o n  s e v e n  t h o u s a n d  o n e  h u n d r e d  

f i f t y - o n e  d o l l a r s  a n d  n i n e t y - e i g h t  c e n t s  ( $ 7 , 0 0 7 , 1 5 1 . 9 8 ) .  

. 5 .  It was f u r t h e r  p a r t  o f  s a i d  c o n s p i r a c y  t h a t  a f t e r  

VICTOR MANUEL GERENA, a / k / a  " A g u i l a , "  r o b b e d  Wells F a r g o  on 

S e p t e m b e r  1 2 ,  1 9 8 3 ,  t h e  d e f e n d a n t s ,  FILIBERTO INOCENCIO 

OJEDA-RIOS, a / k / a  l t G r e c o , "  a / k / a  " L u i s , "  a / k / a  " J u v e n a l  

Conception," a / k / a  n P e d r o  A l m o d o v a r , "  a / k / a  " J u l i o  L o p e z , "  

a / k / a  I1El V i e j ~ , ~  J U A N  ENRIQUE SEGARRA 111-PALMER, a / k / a  

" J o s e  P e r e z - M o r e n ~ , ~  a / k / a  " R o n a l d  P r i n c i o t t a , "  a / k / a    pap^,^ 

a / k / a  " J u n i o r , "  AVELINO GONZALEZ-CLAUDIO, a / k / a  " T i n o , "  

HILTON EDGARDO FERNANDEZ-DIAMANTE, a / k / a  l l R o r n a n ~ , ~  JORGE 
# 



AURELIO FARINACCI-GARCIA, a / k / a  "Robe r to , "  NORBERTO GONZALEZ- 

CLAUDIO, a / k / a  I tJohnny, " and  ORLANDO GONZALEZ-CLAUDIO, a / k / a  

"JumboBW t r a n s p o r t e d  and  c a u s e d  t o  be t r a n s p o r t e d  VICTOR 

MANUEL GERENA, a / k / a  "Agu i l a , "  and  a p o r t i o n  of t h e  s t o l e n  

Wells F a r g o  money f r o m  West H a r t f o r d ,  C o n n e c t i c u t ,  t o  Mexico 

on  o r  a b o u t  S e p t e m b e r  27,  1983 .  

6. I t  was f u r t h e r  p a r t  o f  s a i d  c o n s p i r a c y  t h a t  on o r  

a b o u t  S e p t e m b e r  27 ,  1983 ,  t h e  e x a c t  d a t e  b e i n g  unknown t o  t h e  

Grand J u r y ,  t h e  d e f e n d a n t s  FILIBERTO INOCENCIO OJEDA-RIOS, 

a / k / a  "Grecofl ,  a / k / a  n L u i s m ,  a / k / a  " J u v e n a l  C o n c e p c i o n n ,  

a / k / a  "Pedro  Almodovarn ,  a / k / a  " J u l i o  L o p e z n ,  a / k / a  "El  

V i e j o w ,  J U A N  ENRIQUE SEGARRA 111-PALMER, a / k / a  " J o s e  P e r e z -  

Morenow, a / k / a  "Ronald P r i n c i o t t a N ,  a / k / a  "Papot t ,  a / k / a  

" J u n i o r w ,  AVELINO GONZALEZ-CLAUDIO, a / k / a  n T i n o n ,  HILTON 

EDGARDO FERNANDEZ-DIAMANTE, a / k / a  "Romanom, JORGE AURELIO 

FARINACCI-GARCIA, a / k / a  I tRobe r tow,  NORBERTO GONZALEZ-CLAUDIO, 

a / k / a  i t ~ o h n n y n ,  and  ORLANDO GONZALEZ-CLAUDIO, a / k / a  "Jumbo" 

t r a n s p o r t e d  a n d  c a u s e d  t o  be  t r a n s p o r t e d  VICTOR MANUEL 

GERENA, a / k / a  " A g u i l a n  f rom Mexico t o  Cuba. 

7 .  I t  was f u r t h e r  p a r t  o f  s a i d  c o n s p i r a c y  t h a t  on o r  

a b o u t  March 27 ,  1984 ,  t h e  e x a c t  d a t e  b e i n g  unknown t o  t h e  

Grand J u r y ,  t h e  d e f e n d a n t s  FILIBERTO INOCENCIO OJEDA-RIOS, 

a / k / a  "Pedro  Almodoyar",  a / k / a  " J u l i o  L o p e z n ,  a / k / a  " E l  

V i e j o l t ,  J U A N  ENRIQUE SEGARRA 111-PALMER, a / k / a  " J o s e  P e r e z -  
# 



Morenon, a / k / a  Ronald  P r l n c i o t t a n ,  a / k / a  IfPapow, a / k / a  

f l J u n l o r " ,  AVELINO GONZALEZ-CLAUDIO, a / k / a  t tT1nows HILTON 

EDGARDO PERNANDEZ-DIAMANTE, a / k / a  hRomanon, JORGE AURELIO 

PARINACC I-GARCIA,  a / k / a  " ~ o b e r t o  n s  NORBERTO GONZALEZ-CLAUDIO, 

a / k / a  "Johnnyw,  ORLANDO GONZALEZ-CLAUDIO, a / k / a  w J u m b o ~ ,  

ELIAS SAMUEL CASTRO-RAMOS, a / k / a  "Mar t in" ,  IVONNE MELENDEZ- 

C A R R I O N ,  a / k / a  u P a l c o n w s  and ISAAC CAMACHO-NEGRON, a / k / a  

"F rankw t r a n s p o r t e d  a n d  c a u s e d  t o  be  t r a n s p o r t e d  a q u a n t i t y  

o f  s t o l e n  Wells F a r g o  money i n t o  Mexico. 

8. It was f u r t h e r  p a r t  o f  s a i d  c o n s p i r a c y  t h a t  t h e  

d e f e n d a n t s  PILIBERTO INOCENCIO OJEDA-RIOS, a / k / a  wGrecom,  

a / k / a  f t L u l s v ,  a / k / a  V u v e n a l  C o n c e p c i o n v ,  a / k / a  "Pedro  

Almodovartt  , a / k / a  V u l i o  L o p e z w ,  a / k / a  !!El V i e J o w  , J U A N  

ENRIQUE SEGARRA 111-PALMER, a / k / a  " J o s e  Perez-Morenon,  a / k / a  

"Ronald P r i n c i o t t a w ,  a / k / a  "Papon,  a / k / a  f t J u n i o r " ,  AVELINO 

GONZALEZ-CLAUDIO, a / k / a  f t T l n o n ,  HILTON EDGARDO FEMANDEZ- 

DIAMANTE, a / k / a  ttRornanon, JORGE AURELIO FARINACCI-GARCIA, 

I a / k / a  " R o b e r t o n ,  NORBERT0 GONZALEZ-CLAUDIO, a / k / a  " Johnnyn ,  

ORLANDO GONZALEZ-CLAUDIO, a / k / a  "Jumbo," and ELIAS CASTRO- 

RAMOS, a / k / a  v M a r t l n , m  p l a c e d  and  c a u s e d  t o  be p l a c e d  a 

p o r t i o n  o f  t h e  s t o l e n  Wells F a r g o  money I n t o  t h e  c u s t o d y  and 

c o n t r o l  o f  r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s  o f  t h e  Cuban Government,  t h e  e x a c t  

d a t e  b e i n g  unknown t o  t h e  Grand J u r y .  

9 .  I t  was f u r t h e r  p a r t  o f  s a i d  c o n s p i r a c y  t h a t  on o r  

a b o u t  J u n e  29 ,  1984, t h e  d e f e n d a n t  FILIBERTO I N O C E N C I O  OJEDA- 
# 



RIOS, a / k / a  "GrecoW, a / k / a  " L u i s w ,  a / k / a  " J u v e n a l  

~ b n c e p c i o n ~ ~ ,  a / k / a  "Pedro  Almodovarn, a / k / a  " J u l i o  Lopezw,  

a / k / a  "El Vle jow was a d v i s e d  by a r e p r e s e n t a t i v e  of t h e  Cuban 

Government,  whom h e  knew 

s t o l e n  Wells F a r g o  money 

t h e  Cuban Government. 

10 .  It was f u r t h e r  

as "'COMA," t h a t  a p o r t i o n '  of  t h e  

remained i n  t h e  c u s t o d y  and c a r e  of  

p a r t  of  s a i d  c o n s p i r a c y  t h a t  on o r  

a b o u t  J a n u a r y  6 ,  1985,  t h e  d e f e n d a n t s  FILIBERTO INOCENCIO 

OJEDA-RIOS, a / k / a  nGrecoH,  a / k / a  w L u i s n ,  a / k / a  V u v e n a l  

C o n c e p ~ i o n , ~  a / k / a  "Pedro  Almodovar," a / k / a  V u l i o  Lopez,"  

a / k / a  "El V i e J o , "  J U A N  ENRIQUE SEGARRA 111-PALMER, a / k / a  

" J o s e  Perez-Moreno," a / k / a  "Ronald P r l n c i ~ t t a , ~  a / k / a  "Papa," 

a / k / a  W m l ~ r , ~  NORMAN RAMIREZ-TALAVERA, a / k / a  "Pedro ,"  LUZ 

M A R I A  BERRIOS-BERRIOS, a / k / a  nMlrna,w a / k / a  "Lucy S e g a r r a , "  

LUIS ALFRED0 COLON-OSORIO, a / k / a  I1Manuel," a / k / a  "Andres 

Leon-Pagan," ISAAC CAMACHO-NEGRON, a / k / a  "Frank , "  'eARLOS M. 

AYES-SUAREZ, a / k / a  "Pepe, " a / k / a  " P l o ,  p a r t l c l p a t e d  I n  g l f  t 

give-aways i n  C o n n e c t i c u t  and  P u e r t o  R lco  u s i n g  s t o l e n  Wel l s  

F a r g o  money. 

11. It was f u r t h e r  p a r t  of  s a i d  c o n s p i r a c y  t h a t  on o r  

a b o u t  March 2 0 ,  1985,  t h e  d e f e n d a n t  J U A N  ENRIQUE SEGARRA III- 

PALMER, a / k / a  " J o s e  Perez-Moreno", a / k / a  "Ronald P r i n c l o t t a ~ ,  

a / k / a  "Papow,  a / k / a  V u n i o r a t v  exchanged s t o l e n  Wel ls  Fa rgo  

money a t  v a r i o u s  banks I n  t h e  San J u a n  m e t r o p o l i t a n  a r e a .  



1 2 ,  I t  was f u r t h e r  p a r t  of s a i d  c o n s p i r a c y  t h a t  on o r  

a b o u t  March 23, 1985,  t h e  d e f e n d a n t  ANNE L, GASSIN, a / k / a  

wTeresaBw opened a c h e c k i n g  accoun t  a t  t h e  Baybank/Harvard 

T r u s t ,  Cambridge, M a s s a c h u s e t t s ,  i n  o r d e r  t o  d i s p o s e  o f  

s t o l e n  Wells P a r g o  money, 

A l l  i n  v i o l a t i o n  of  T i t l e  18, Uni ted  S t a t e s  Code, 

S e c t i o n  1951,  

COUNT EIGHT 

On o r  a b o u t  J a n u a r y  5 ,  1985, J U A N  ENRIQUE SEGARRA III- 

PALMER, a / k / a  " J o s e  Perez-Morenon, a / k / a  "Ronald P r i n c i o t t a w ,  

a / k / a  "Papon,  a / k / a  n J u n i o r n ,  LUZ M A R I A  BERRIOS-BERRIOS, 

a / k / a  " M i m a w ,  a / k / a  "Lucy S e g a r r a n ,  NORMAN RAMIREZ-TALAVERA, 

a / k / a  "Pedron ,  CARLOS M. AYES-SUAREZ, a / k / a  "Pepen,  a / k / a  

w P i o n ,  t h e  d e f e n d a n t s  h e r e i n ,  a i d e d  and a b e t t e d  by each  

o t h e r ,  w i t h  u n l a w f u l  and f r a u d u l e n t  i n t e n t ,  d i d  w i l f u l l y  

t r a n s p o r t  and caused  t o  be t r a n s p o r t e d  I n  i n t e r s t a t e  commerce 

f rom th.e Commonwealth o f  P u e r t o  Rico  t o  t h e  S t a t e  o f  

C o n n e c t i c u t ,  money of  a v a l u e  i n  e x c e s s  of $5,000,  and t h e  

d e f e n d a n t s  t h e n  knew s a i d  money t o  have  been s t o l e n .  



In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 

2314 and 2. 

A TRUE BILL 

ALAN H. NEVAS 
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

$-/,4- T& 
CARMEN ESPILNOSA VAN KIRK - 

ASSISTANT UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 


